

NOTICES OF FINAL RULEMAKING

The Administrative Procedure Act requires the publication of the final rules of the state's agencies. Final rules are those which have appeared in the *Register* first as proposed rules and have been through the formal rulemaking process including approval by the Governor's Regulatory Review Council or the Attorney General. The Secretary of State shall publish the notice along with the Preamble and the full text in the next available issue of the *Register* after the final rules have been submitted for filing and publication.

NOTICE OF FINAL RULEMAKING

TITLE 14. PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATIONS; CORPORATIONS AND ASSOCIATIONS; SECURITIES REGULATION

CHAPTER 5. CORPORATION COMMISSION – TRANSPORTATION

[R05-92]

PREAMBLE

1. Sections Affected

R14-5-202
R14-5-203
R14-5-204
R14-5-205

Rulemaking Action

Amend
Amend
Amend
Amend

2. The statutory authority for the rulemaking, including both the authorizing statute (general) and the statutes the rules are implementing (specific):

Authorizing statute: A.R.S. §§ 40-202, 40-203, 40-321, 40-441 and 40-442 et seq.
Constitutional authority: Arizona Constitution, Article XV
Implementing statute: Not applicable

3. The effective date of the rules:

The Commission approved these rules at an open meeting on November 23, 2004. Commission Decision No. 67422 was issued on December 7, 2004. Because these rules are to preserve the public health and safety by ensuring the safety of intrastate pipelines and master meter systems, the Commission believes the effective date of these rules should be immediately on filing with the Office of the Secretary of State per A.R.S. § 41-1032. Since these rules must be submitted to the attorney general under A.R.S. §§ 41-1044 and 41-1057, and because the attorney general has 60 days to either approve or disapprove, the effective date of these rules shall be after the attorney general approves the rules and submits the rules package with the Secretary of State per A.R.S. § 41-1032. The attorney general approved these rules, and the effective date is March 3, 2005.

4. A list of all previous notices appearing in the Register addressing the final rule:

Notice of Public Hearing on Proposed Rulemaking: 10 A.A.R. 2443, June 18, 2004
Notice of Rulemaking Docket Opening: 10 A.A.R. 2264, June 4, 2004
Notice of Proposed Rulemaking: 10 A.A.R. 2234, June 4, 2004

5. The name and address of agency personnel with whom persons may communicate regarding the rulemaking:

Name: Jason D. Gellman, Commission Counsel, Legal Division
Address: Corporation Commission
1200 W. Washington St.
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Telephone: (602) 542-3402
Fax: (602) 542-4870

6. An explanation of the rule, including the agency's reasons for initiating the rule:

Staff is proposing amendments to transportation rules R14-5-202, R14-5-203, R14-5-204, and R14-5-205. The amendments will update the rules to incorporate the most recent amendments to the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Title 49, Parts 40, 191, 192, except I (2) and (3) of Appendix D to Part 192, 193, 195 (except 195.1(b)(2) and (3)) and 199 revised as of January 15, 2004. In addition, staff is proposing new regulations setting parameters for laboratory testing for both intrastate pipeline operators and master meter operators. These amendments require that the operator retains a removed portion of pipeline that failed for reasons unknown as a result of an incident that requires

a telephonic or written incident report under A.A.C. R14-5-203(B) and (C). An unknown failure has been defined under the rules and includes any failure where the operator and the Commission's Office of Pipeline Safety ("OPS"), a section of staff, disagree. OPS shall be notified of the removal within two hours after the removal is completed by the operator. Also, the operator will be required to provide specific information about the removed portion of pipeline. Per the new regulations, OPS shall have 48 hours to notify the operator that it is directing the operator to have the portion of pipeline removed and tested by a laboratory or that the portion of pipeline removed may be discarded. Furthermore, the new regulations state that OPS shall select the laboratory to test the failed portions of pipeline. OPS shall establish the time-frame for the testing, the number of tests, and the type of tests to be performed on the portion of pipeline that was removed. OPS shall notify the operator of its determinations. Per the new proposed regulations, the operator shall notify OPS of the number and types of tests it proposes. The operator will be required to notify OPS of the date and time of any laboratory tests at least 20 days before the tests are done. A representative from OPS will be permitted to observe any and all tests, if such a request is made by OPS. Furthermore, the new regulations will require the operator to ensure that the original laboratory test results are provided to OPS within 30 days of the completion of the tests. Finally, the new regulations make explicit that the operator is to pay for the laboratory testing. The new regulations also provide for a formal selection process. OPS shall be required to submit written requests to at least three different laboratories for bids to conduct the testing. OPS, when selecting a laboratory, shall consider the qualifications of the respondent laboratories to perform the testing, including past experience in performing the required test or tests according to ASTM International standards or any recognition that the laboratory may demonstrate with national or international laboratory accreditation bodies. OPS shall select the laboratory that offers the optimum balance between costs and demonstrated ability to perform the required test or tests. OPS must wait until it receives three written quotations to conduct the testing, or OPS must wait at least 30 days from the date the request for bids has passed, before selecting a laboratory to conduct the testing. The federal regulations, in Title 49 CFR Part 192.617, require the company to establish procedures for analyzing a failure and determining the cause of an incident, including selection of samples for laboratory examination. The federal regulation does not specifically require staff approval of a laboratory. These proposed amendments regarding laboratory testing are recommended by staff as a result of recent pipeline safety-related events. R14-5-202(S). R14-5-205(P). In addition, the amended pipeline safety rules will also require operators of hazardous liquid pipelines to file annual reports. R14-5-204(A). In addition, all newly installed natural gas, hazardous liquid, or other gas intrastate pipelines will be required to have proper bedding and shading, as described in R14-5-202(O) and R14-5-205(I). In addition, the updated rules will require all plastic pipe and fittings to be marked with CD, CE, CF, or CG per ASTM D2513. R14-5-202(P) and R14-5-205(J). In addition, the rules update the location of the OPS to 2200 North Central, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004. R14-5-202(B), (E), (J), (P), and (R); R14-5-203(B) and (C); R14-5-204(A); and R14-5-205(B), (G), (J), (O), and (Q). Based on comments received by the Secretary of State's Office, the rules remove the reference to incorporated materials being on file with the Secretary of State's Office. R14-5-202(B), (E), (J), (K), (P), and (R); R14-5-203(B) and (C); R14-5-204(A); R14-5-205(B), (G), (J), and (O). The rules also update addresses for the United States Government Printing Office, NACE International, Techstreet (formerly CSSINFO), and ASTM International (formerly ASTM). R14-5-203(C)(2)(a) and (b) are amended to indicate the latest revision to federal forms RSPA 7100.1 and 7100.2, respectively. Because the Code of Federal Regulations addresses underground clearance requirements from underground structures for natural gas and other gas transmission pipelines, and all hazardous liquid pipelines, R14-5-202(G) was amended to apply only to natural gas and other gas distribution pipelines. Finally, the proposed amendments will conform to the most recent amendments of the Federal Pipeline Safety Regulations, which is required by the Commission's agreement with the United States Department of Transportation, Office of Pipeline Safety, and require for the Commission's Pipeline Safety Group to receive federal funds for Pipeline Safety Programs. Staff believes that the proposed amendments will be beneficial to the general public by maintaining the safe operation of pipeline facilities.

7. A reference to any study relevant to the rule that the agency reviewed and either relied on in its evaluation of or justification for the rule or did not rely on in its evaluation of or justification for the rule, where the public may obtain or review each study, all data underlying each study, and any analysis of each study and other supporting material:

None

8. A showing of good cause why the rule is necessary to promote a statewide interest if the rule will diminish a previous grant of authority of a political subdivision of this state:

The Commission believes that by incorporating by reference Title 49 CFR Parts 40, 191, 192, except I (2) and (3) of Appendix D to Part 192, 193, 195 (except 195.1(b)(2) and (3)) and 199 revised as of January 15, 2004, the rules will be consistent with current best practices and will enhance public safety, which is in the best interest of all citizens in the state of Arizona.

9. The summary of the economic, small business, and consumer impact:

Small business subject to the rules: These rules do not change the responsibilities of master meter operators already established in 1970 by the adoption by the Commission of the Code of Federal Regulations, Title 49, Parts 191 and 192. The laboratory testing provisions will only have some impact if an incident occurs as defined in A.A.C. R14-5-205(P).

Notices of Final Rulemaking

The new rules will have no effect upon consumers or users of the gas service provided by regulated public utilities as they presently are required to be in compliance with all standards, but this will benefit consumers, users, and the general public by maintaining a safe pipeline system.

The proposed rules are the least costly method for obtaining compliance with the long standing minimum safety standards. The rules do not impose additional standards. There is no less intrusive method.

10. A description of the changes between the proposed rules, including supplemental notices, and final rules (if applicable):

R14-5-202 – Construction and Safety Standards

R14-5-202

Issue: The Arizona Utility Group (“AUG”) comments that internet addresses should be provided for each agency or entity listed in the rule.

Subsequent to a workshop meeting, staff and AUG agree to consider this proposal in an upcoming workshop.

Analysis: We agree with AUG and staff that this issue should be addressed in a future workshop.

Resolution: No change required.

R14-5-202(B)

Issue 1: The AUG comments that the address listed for the U.S. Government Printing Office should be updated to reflect its warehouse services address, which is 8660 Cherry Lane, Laurel, MD 20707.

Staff comments that the address should be changed to P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954.

Analysis: We agree with staff. The U.S. Government Printing Office web site indicates that orders by mail should be sent to P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954.

Resolution: Replace “P.O. Box 371975M, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7975” with “P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954.”

Issue 2: The Secretary of State’s Office (“SOS”) comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees and states that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff and the SOS.

Resolution: Delete “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State.”

Issue 3: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 4: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that “Office of Pipeline Safety” is defined in R14-5-201 as “the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission,” and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the “Commission Office of Pipeline Safety” to “Office of Pipeline Safety” to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete “Commission” immediately preceding “Office of Pipeline Safety.”

R14-5-202(E)(1)

Issue 1: The AUG comments that the address listed for NACE International should be updated to reflect the current address, which is NACE International, 1440 South Creek Drive, Houston, Texas 77084-4906.

Staff comments that it agrees that the address should be updated.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Replace “P.O. Box 218340, Houston, Texas 77218-8340” with “1440 South Creek Drive, Houston, Texas 77084-4906.”

Notices of Final Rulemaking

Issue 2: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees to the amendment with one exception, addition of the word “and” such that the phrase “and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff.

Resolution: Delete “and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State.”

Issue 3: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 4: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that “Office of Pipeline Safety” is defined in R14-5-201 as “the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission,” and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the “Commission Office of Pipeline Safety” to “Office of Pipeline Safety” to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete “Commission” immediately preceding “Office of Pipeline Safety.”

R14-5-202(E)(2)

Issue 1: The AUG comments that the address listed for CSSINFO should be updated to reflect the current address, which is 777 East Eisenhower Parkway, Ann Arbor, MI 48108.

Staff comments that it agrees that the address should be changed as proposed by AUG but adds that CSSINFO should be referred to by its new name of Techstreet.

Analysis: We agree with AUG and staff that the address should be updated. Furthermore, we agree with staff that CSSINFO is now known as Techstreet, and the rule should be amended accordingly.

Resolution: Replace “the CSSINFO, 310 Miller Avenue, Ann Arbor, Michigan, 48103” with “Techstreet, 777 East Eisenhower Parkway, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48108.”

Issue 2: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees to the amendment with one exception, addition of the word “and” such that the phrase “and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff.

Resolution: Delete “and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State.”

Issue 3: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 4: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that “Office of Pipeline Safety” is defined in R14-5-201 as “the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission,” and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the “Commission Office of Pipeline Safety” to “Office of Pipeline Safety” to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete “Commission” immediately preceding “Office of Pipeline Safety.”

R14-5-202(G)

Issue 1: Post-Commission Decision (after December 3, 2004), concern was raised over the addition of the word “distribution” before pipeline and taking out references to “LNG” and “hazardous liquid.”

Analysis: The purpose of this subsection is to ensure ample distance between facilities so that the protection given to natural gas pipelines, such as cathodic protection, does not interfere with the operations and protection of other facilities. Also, a clearance of 8 inches or more allows for maintenance crews the minimum clearance needed to perform on a distribution pipeline without interfering with the operations of another pipeline or other underground facilities. Distribution pipelines are defined in the Code of Federal Regulations as “those natural gas and other gas pipelines that are neither gathering pipelines nor transmission pipelines.” See 49 CFR 192.3. Natural gas and other gas transmission pipelines are also defined in the Federal Code. *Id.* Underground clearance for natural and other gas transmission pipelines are governed by 49 CFR 192.325, which requires at least 12 inches between a transmission pipeline and any other underground structure. For all hazardous liquid pipelines, 49 CFR 195.250 requires 12 inches of clearance from any other underground structure. Arizona adopted the federal pipeline safety rules in A.A.C. R14-5-202(B). These regulations are stricter than what R14-5-202(G) required for natural gas and other gas transmission pipelines and hazardous liquid pipelines. But there are no underground clearance requirements for natural gas and other gas distribution pipelines in the Federal Code that are not mains as defined in the Federal Code. Even so, there is no bright-line requirement for underground clearance for these mains. Pipeline Safety believes, for technical reasons, that 8 inches of clearance between natural gas and other gas distribution pipelines and any underground structure still is appropriate and still will protect the public safety. Furthermore, liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) is utilized for the storage of natural gas. LNG is not transported through pipelines; LNG is converted to its gaseous state before transportation by pipeline. Therefore, underground clearance requirements for LNG pipelines are not needed because there are no intrastate LNG pipelines in Arizona. No entity disputed the changes to this subsection in proceedings before the Commission.

Resolution: The amendments in this subsection were approved as part of Commission Decision No. 67442 on December 3, 2004.

R14-5-202(J)

Issue 1: The AUG comments that the address listed for the U.S. Government Printing Office should be updated to reflect its warehouse services address, which is 8660 Cherry Lane, Laurel, MD 20707.

Staff comments that the address should be changed to P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954.

Analysis: We agree with staff. The U.S. Government Printing Office web site indicates that orders by mail should be sent to P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954.

Resolution: Replace “P.O. Box 371975M, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7975” with “P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954.”

Issue 2: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees and states that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff and the SOS.

Resolution: Delete “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State.”

Issue 3: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 4: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that “Office of Pipeline Safety” is defined in R14-5-201 as “the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission,” and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the “Commission Office of Pipeline Safety” to “Office of Pipeline Safety” to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete “Commission” immediately preceding “Office of Pipeline Safety.”

R14-5-202(K)

Notices of Final Rulemaking

Issue 1: The AUG comments that the address listed for the U.S. Government Printing Office should be updated to reflect its warehouse services address, which is 8660 Cherry Lane, Laurel, MD 20707.

Staff comments that the address should be changed to P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954.

Analysis: We agree with staff. The U.S. Government Printing Office web site indicates that orders by mail should be sent to P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954.

Resolution: Replace “P.O. Box 371975M, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7975” with “P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954.”

Issue 2: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees and states that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff and the SOS.

Resolution: Delete “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State.”

Issue 3: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 4: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that “Office of Pipeline Safety” is defined in R14-5-201 as “the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission,” and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the “Commission Office of Pipeline Safety” to “Office of Pipeline Safety” to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete “Commission” immediately preceding “Office of Pipeline Safety.”

R14-5-202(O)

Issue: The AUG and El Paso Pipeline Group (“El Paso”) comment that staff’s proposal to strike the language “using plastic pipe” in this Section expands the rule’s application to all pipe, and specifically steel pipe, thereby precluding the use of other adequate options for the protection of steel pipe, which could result in a significant economic impact. AUG comments that instead of striking the phrase “using plastic pipe,” the following provision addressing steel pipe should be added at the end of the subsection: “Steel pipe shall be installed with bedding and shading, free of any debris or materials injurious to the pipe coating, unless otherwise protected as allowed by federal regulation or approved by OPS.”

AUG and El Paso comment that inclusion of the phrase “unless otherwise protected as allowed by federal regulation or approved by OPS” is intended to provide for the use of alternative methods for protecting the pipe from damage. El Paso adds that this treatment is consistent with the federal regulatory language.

Staff comments that the concerns expressed by AUG and El Paso are legitimate, that the rule should be modified such that the phrase “using plastic pipe” remains in the rule, and that the language proposed by AUG, and supported by El Paso, should be included with one modification. Specifically, staff proposes adding the language “unless otherwise protected and approved by the Office of Pipeline Safety” rather than “unless otherwise protected as allowed by federal regulation or approved by OPS” as proposed by AUG and El Paso.

Analysis: We agree with staff, AUG, and El Paso that the phrase “using plastic pipe” should remain in the rule. We agree with staff, however, that the additional language relating to the use of steel pipe should be qualified by the phrase “unless otherwise protected and approved by the Office of Pipeline Safety.” AUG’s proposed reference to the use of methods approved by federal regulation does not mimic the existing state rule and effectively diminishes the Office of Pipeline Safety’s ability to regulate the methodology to be utilized.

Resolution: Retain the phrase “using plastic pipe,” and add “Steel pipe shall be installed with bedding and shading, free of any debris or materials injurious to the pipe coating, unless otherwise protected and approved by the Office of Pipeline Safety” at the end of the subsection.

R14-5-202(P)

Issue 1: AUG comments that the reference to ASTM should be updated to reflect the fact that the organization is now referred to as ASTM International.

Notices of Final Rulemaking

Staff agrees with AUG's comment and adds that the address listed for ASTM should be updated to reflect the new address, which is 100 Barr Harbor Drive, P.O. Box C700, West Conshohocken, Pennsylvania 19428-2959.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Replace "the ASTM, 1916 Race Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-1187," with "ASTM International, 100 Barr Harbor Drive, P.O. Box C700, West Conshohocken, Pennsylvania 19428-2959."

Issue 2: AUG comments that the ASTM standard should reflect the identical standard found in the most current issue of the federal rule, which is D2513-87 for 49 CFR 192.63(a)(1) and otherwise D2513-96(a).

AUG and staff agree, however, to discuss updating industry standards in a workshop to be held in the future.

Analysis: We agree with AUG and staff that industry standards should be discussed at a future workshop and updated as necessary after a full discussion with the parties has taken place.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 3: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State" be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees and states that the phrase "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State" should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff and the SOS.

Resolution: Delete "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State."

Issue 4: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 5: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that "Office of Pipeline Safety" is defined in R14-5-201 as "the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission," and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the "Commission Office of Pipeline Safety" to "Office of Pipeline Safety" to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete "Commission" immediately preceding "Office of Pipeline Safety."

Issue 6: AUG comments that staff's proposed language will require that all plastic pipe and fittings be marked both "Gas" and CD, CE, CF, or CG, which exceeds the 1995 standards set forth by the American Society for Testing and Materials ("ASTM") D2513. AUG comments that the proposed requirements will impose an unnecessary economic burden on pipeline operators given the need to obtain the required changes to current markings.

Staff comments that it agrees that the economic impact of having plastic pipe and fittings marked "Gas" significantly outweighs the benefit and that having the plastic pipe and fittings marked CD, CE, CF, or CG will ensure the public safety. Accordingly, staff and AUG agree to the deletion of the phrase "shall be marked 'Gas' and" such that the subsection should read, "In addition, all plastic pipe and fittings shall be marked CD, CE, CF, or CG as required by ASTM D2513."

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete "shall be marked 'Gas' and."

R14-5-202(R)

Issue 1: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State" be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees to the amendment with one exception, addition of the word "and" such that the phrase "and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State" should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff.

Resolution: Delete "and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State."

Notices of Final Rulemaking

Issue 2: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 3: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that "Office of Pipeline Safety" is defined in R14-5-201 as "the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission," and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the "Commission Office of Pipeline Safety" to "Office of Pipeline Safety" to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete "Commission" immediately preceding "Office of Pipeline Safety."

Issue 4: The AUG comments that the rule's reference to the American Society of Mechanical Engineers ("ASME") Guide material in Appendix G-11-1983 is, in part, outdated and incorrect given a number of changes to the federal regulation. AUG further comments that although Appendix G-11 is used nationally by natural gas operators, it is utilized as a guide and may not, therefore, be applicable in all circumstances for all operators. AUG comments that the ASME was superseded by the AGA's Gas Pipeline Technology Committee, which was approved by the American National Standards Institute ("ANSI") Gas Pipeline and Technology Committee ("GPTC") Z380.1 in December 1992. Consequently, AUG argues that the most current version of the ANSI/GPTC Z380.1 guide material should be incorporated by reference.

Staff comments that updating the industrial standards is not always beneficial to the public safety. Consequently, staff comments that certain industrial standards referenced in the Rules should not be updated at this time but that such an update might be appropriate in a subsequent rulemaking if it is in the public interest. Staff comments that AUG has agreed to defer such an update of certain industrial standards until the parties have had the opportunity to discuss the ramifications of so doing.

Analysis: We agree that any updates should be deferred until such time as the parties have had an opportunity to fully consider whether such updates would serve the public interest.

Resolution: No change required.

R14-5-202(S)

Issue: The SOS comments that references to "paragraph," "subparagraph," or "item" should be changed to "subsection" to conform to the *Arizona Rulemaking Manual*.

Staff agrees and recommends conforming changes to utilize the term "subsection."

Analysis: We agree with the SOS and staff.

Resolution: Replace all references to "paragraph," "subparagraph," and "item" with "subsection."

R14-5-202(S)(1)

Issue: Staff, SWG, AUG, and UNS comment that disagreements regarding the language in this subsection relating to laboratory testing have been resolved by discussions amongst the parties resulting in the following consensus language, which should replace all prior manifestations of the rule:

- S. Laboratory testing of intrastate pipelines shall be conducted in accordance with the following:
1. If an operator of an intrastate natural gas, other gas, or hazardous liquid pipeline removes a portion of a failed pipeline from an incident that requires a telephonic or written incident report under R14-5-203(B) or (C), where the cause of the failure is unknown, the operator shall retain the portion that was removed and shall telephonically notify the Office of Pipeline Safety of the removal within two hours after the removal is completed. A notice made pursuant to this subsection shall include all of the following:
 - a. Identity of the failed pipeline,
 - b. Description and location of the failure,
 - c. Date and time of the removal,
 - d. Length or quantity of the removed portion,
 - e. Storage location of the removed portion,
 - f. Any additional information about the failure or the removal of the portion of the pipeline that failed that is requested by the Office of Pipeline Safety.

An unknown failure is any failure where the cause of the failure is not observable external corrosion, third-

Notices of Final Rulemaking

party damage, natural or other outside forces, construction or material defect, equipment malfunction or incorrect operations; or is any failure where the Office of Pipeline Safety and the operator do not agree as to the cause of the failure.

Analysis: The proposed amendment represents consensus language addressing concerns raised by industry representatives. Specifically, there was concern that the term “failure,” as it originally appeared in staff’s proposed amendment, was not defined and therefore not specific enough to discern what constitutes a reportable incident. Additionally, the industry representatives were concerned that this lack of specificity could result in daily reporting of minor incidents that occur in the normal course of business and do not warrant testing as originally proposed.

Additionally, the consensus language addresses the industry’s concern, as specifically expressed by AUG, that the new notice requirements originally proposed by staff do not relate back to the existing notice requirements as set forth in R14-5-203.

We agree with staff, SWG, AUG, and UNS. We believe that the consensus language provides the required clarification for implementation of the rule while simultaneously reserving OPS’ right to receive notification of the removal of a failed pipeline such that OPS may then make a determination as to whether further investigation and testing of the failed portion of pipeline should be undertaken.

We believe, however, that two minor modifications in the language of the proposed rule would provide clarity. Specifically, subsection (1) should be amended by inserting the phrase “where the cause of the failure is unknown” immediately after “failed pipeline,” and subsequently, the word “from” should be replaced with the phrase “as the result of” such that the sentence reads as follows: “If an operator of an intrastate natural gas, other gas, or hazardous liquid pipeline removes a portion of a failed pipeline, where the cause of the failure is unknown, as the result of an incident that requires a telephonic or written incident report under R14-5-203(B) or (C), the operator shall retain the portion that was removed and shall telephonically notify the Office of Pipeline Safety of the removal within two hours after the removal is completed.”

Resolution: Amend 202(S)(1) to read as follows:

- S. Laboratory testing of intrastate pipelines shall be conducted in accordance with the following:
1. If an operator of an intrastate natural gas, other gas, or hazardous liquid pipeline removes a portion of a failed pipeline, where the cause of the failure is unknown, as the result of an incident that requires a telephonic or written incident report under R14-5-203(B) or (C), the operator shall retain the portion that was removed and shall telephonically notify the Office of Pipeline Safety of the removal within two hours after the removal is completed. A notice made pursuant to this subsection shall include all of the following:
 - a. Identity of the failed pipeline,
 - b. Description and location of the failure,
 - c. Date and time of the removal,
 - d. Length or quantity of the removed portion,
 - e. Storage location of the removed portion,
 - f. Any additional information about the failure or the removal of the portion of the pipeline that failed that is requested by the Office of Pipeline Safety.

An unknown failure is any failure where the cause of the failure is not observable external corrosion, third-party damage, natural or other outside forces, construction or material defect, equipment malfunction or incorrect operations; or is any failure where the Office of Pipeline Safety and the operator do not agree as to the cause of the failure.

R14-5-202(S)(2)

Issue: SWG comments, and AUG agrees, that the language of the rule should be amended to read as follows:

2. Within 48 hours after telephonic notification pursuant to subsection (1), the Office of Pipeline Safety shall notify the operator either that:
 - a. The Office of Pipeline Safety is directing the operator to have the portion of the pipeline that was removed tested by a third-party laboratory to determine the cause or causes of the failure; or
 - b. The Office of Pipeline Safety is not directing the operator to conduct third-party laboratory testing and the operator may discard the portion of the pipeline that was removed.

The Office of Pipeline Safety shall confirm its notification in writing.

Staff comments that it does not support this proposed language.

Analysis: We agree with staff with regard to SWG’s proposed language referencing a third-party laboratory. This language was presumably added in conjunction with SWG’s additional amendments to subsection (S)(3), by which SWG proposes that the operator be responsible for determining the laboratory to be used such that it would be necessary to specify that a third party laboratory, rather than the operator’s, would be utilized. It is, however, unnecessary and redundant to add such language as the laboratory to be utilized pursuant to the rule will necessarily be a third-party laboratory chosen by, but not under the control of, the OPS.

We disagree with staff, however, with regard to the insertion of the word “telephonic” and with regard to the additional language directing the Office of Pipeline Safety to confirm its notification in writing. Clarifying that the notification pursuant to subsection (1) is telephonic in nature creates consistency among the subsections. Additionally, requiring the OPS to confirm the telephonic notification in writing is not unduly burdensome, would improve clarity, and would eliminate any dispute as to whether telephonic notification had been effected.

Additionally, we believe that the word “that” should be moved and inserted between the words “operator” and “either” in the second line of the subsection.

Resolution: Amend 202(S)(2) to read as follows:

2. Within 48 hours after telephonic notification pursuant to subsection (1), the Office of Pipeline Safety shall notify the operator that either:
 - a. The Office of Pipeline Safety is directing the operator to have the portion of the pipeline that was removed tested by a laboratory to determine the cause or causes of the failure; or
 - b. The Office of Pipeline Safety is not directing laboratory testing and the operator may discard the portion of the pipeline that was removed.

The Office of Pipeline Safety shall confirm its notification in writing.

R14-5-202(S)(3)

Issue 1: SWG comments that if OPS dictates the means and methods of a material investigation, it assumes civil liability as an operator if the investigation is negligently performed. Specifically, SWG comments that the OPS functions contemplated by the proposed rule have long been recognized by the federal law as being intimately associated with the operation and maintenance of a pipeline system, and the operator’s negligent failure to comply with these legal requirements exposes the operator to suit for civil liability when that negligence proximately results in injury.

In a subsequent reply to staff’s responsive comments, SWG adds that it is reasonable to expect the OPS to be a defendant in any litigation following a significant incident in which it can be alleged that OPS bears some responsibility. In support of this contention, SWG adds that the Commission is currently a defendant in a personal injury lawsuit relating to an incident involving the release and ignition of natural gas.

Staff comments that the proposed laboratory testing rules do not make OPS an operator. An operator is defined in the federal rules as being “a person who engages in the transportation of gas,” and these federal rules were adopted in Arizona pursuant to A.A.C. R14-5-202(B). Neither OPS nor staff will be engaged in the transportation of gas, and expanding the role of the OPS to include the selection of a laboratory does not make OPS an operator. Finally, staff comments that although risk of litigation exists, it does not outweigh the benefits offered by passage of the amended rule.

Analysis: We agree with staff that the oversight benefits offered by the amended rule outweigh the potential risk of litigation. As pointed out by SWG, the Commission currently occupies a supervisory role that may result in litigation notwithstanding the proposed amendment. Expanding the Commission’s oversight role in this arena may result in a greater risk of litigation, but it is as likely that the Commission would be subject to the same litigation absent any additional oversight of future pipeline failure. Finally, while we acknowledge the risk of litigation based upon the OPS’ oversight of testing facilities and methods, we do not believe that liability will arise as a consequence of the OPS being deemed an “operator.”

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 2: SWG comments that OPS, unlike a federal agency, will not be immune to civil liability for its negligent determination of the means and methods of a material investigation as Arizona has abrogated its sovereign immunity for instruments of the state government in all instances not within the narrow exceptions listed in A.R.S. §§ 12-820 through 12-826.

SWG adds, however, that if a Commission administrative law judge were to adjudicate, pursuant to the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, a discovery dispute related to the number and/or types of tests to be performed, the Commission would likely be insulated from civil liability to injured persons as some form of judicial immunity would probably apply to the judicial function.

Staff comments that Arizona courts have recognized that immunity still exists in those instances where dismissing immunity would hamper achievement of important governmental objectives. Staff further comments that absolute immunity will apply when the government is performing administrative functions involving fundamental governmental policy. The purpose of these laboratory testing rules is for the public health and safety, and the decision to require independent laboratory testing chosen by the OPS involved considerable thought and discretion that renders approval of these proposed rules equivalent to fundamental governmental policy. As such, if the Commission promulgates these rules, it will be protected by absolute immunity.

Staff comments that although absolute immunity is not as clear in terms of the implementation of the rules, liability would be predicated upon a showing of duty, breach, and proximate cause even if absolute immunity did not apply. Staff believes that the decision to adopt the laboratory testing rules should be based upon an analysis of whether the rules will advance the public safety rather than the possibility of liability. Staff adds that it believes the benefits of these laboratory testing rules outweigh the costs.

Notices of Final Rulemaking

Analysis: We agree with staff that the adoption of the laboratory testing rules should be based upon the advancement of public safety when this benefit is shown to outweigh the costs of potential litigation. While it appears that implementation of the rules could potentially expose the Commission to civil liability, it is not clear the extent to which the Commission would be insulated from such liability should discovery disputes be adjudicated by a Commission administrative law judge. Moreover, any potential immunity derived from the Commission's judicial function would conceivably be limited to alleged negligence arising from the limited issue subject to adjudication and may not provide blanket protection. In the absence of a significantly diminished probability that liability would attach, we believe that the process of laboratory and test selection should not be delayed by administrative adjudication, and the OPS should be the entity responsible for the final decision should a dispute arise.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 3: SWG comments, and AUG agrees, that the language of the rule should be amended to read as follows:

3. If the Office of Pipeline Safety directs third-party laboratory testing pursuant to subsection (2)(a);
 - a. The Office of Pipeline Safety shall:
 - ~~i. Determine the laboratory that will do the testing pursuant to subsection (4) and the period of time within which the testing is to be completed.~~
 - ~~ii. Approve the number and types of tests to be performed.~~
 - ~~iii. Notify the operator of its determination pursuant to subsections 3(a)(i) and (ii). if additional or alternative tests are required.~~
 - ii. Notify the operator if representatives from the Office of Pipeline Safety and any of its consultants will observe or record any or all of the tests.
 - b. The operator shall:
 - i. Notify the Office of Pipeline Safety of the identity of the third-party laboratory. In choosing a third-party laboratory, the operator shall consider the qualifications of the laboratory to perform the testing, including:
 - (1) Past experience in performing the required test or tests according to ASTM International standards.
 - (2) Any recognition that the laboratory may demonstrate with national or international laboratory accreditation bodies.
 - ~~ii. Notify the Office of Pipeline Safety of the number and types of tests proposed by the operator.~~
 - ~~iii. Notify the Office of Pipeline Safety of the location, date and time of any third-party laboratory tests at least twenty days before the tests are done.~~
 - iv. Respond to the Office of Pipeline Safety regarding any required alternative or additional tests pursuant to subsection (3)(a)(i).
 - ~~v. At the request of the Office of Pipeline Safety, ensure that a representatives of the Office of Pipeline Safety is and any of its consultants are permitted to observe and record any or all of the tests.~~
 - ~~vi. Ensure that the original third-party laboratory test results are report is provided to the Office of Pipeline Safety within thirty days of the completion of the test operator's receipt of the report.~~
 - ~~v. Pay for the laboratory testing.~~

Staff comments that it does not support this proposed language.

Analysis: We agree with staff. The language proposed by SWG effectively eliminates OPS' authority to determine both the laboratory that will undertake the testing as well as the number and types of tests to be performed.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 4: SWG comments that when the OPS acts as an operator pursuant to the powers granted by the proposed rule, these activities will have the effect of preventing the operator from performing some of its operational obligations as set forth in 49 CFR 192.617, which in turn jeopardizes the OPS' federal certification for gas or hazardous liquid under 49 U.S.C. 60105(a) as well as its federal grant-in-aid funds. SWG adds that 49 U.S.C. 60104(c) provides, "[a] State authority that has submitted a current certification under Section 60105(a) of this title may adopt additional or more stringent safety standards for intrastate pipeline facilities and intrastate pipeline transportation only if those standards are compatible with the minimum standards prescribed" in the Code of Federal Regulations.

Staff comments that the proposed rules are not incompatible with 49 CFR 192.617, which states that "[e]ach operator shall establish procedures for analyzing accidents and failures, including the selection of samples of the failed facility or equipment for laboratory examination, where appropriate, for the purpose of determining the causes of the failure and minimizing the possibility of a recurrence." Staff states that OPS' selection of the laboratory and tests to be performed does not conflict with this federal provision. Rather, SWG must establish procedures that incorporate and work within the framework of the proposed laboratory testing rules. Finally, staff comments that because the two regulations can and should be read in harmony, the rule should be amended as proposed.

Analysis: We agree with staff that the provisions of R14-2-202(S)(3) are not incompatible with the minimum federal safety standards as set forth in 49 CFR 192.617 and consequently, that 49 U.S.C. 60104(c) permits a state authority to "adopt additional or more stringent safety standards for intrastate pipeline facilities and intrastate pipeline transporta-

tion.” Given that 49 CFR 192.617 requires an operator to establish procedures, rather than dictating the procedures to be utilized, we agree with staff that the operator can establish procedures that incorporate and operate within this proposed rule.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 5: The city of Mesa comments that subsection (a)(i) directs the OPS to determine the laboratory that will do the necessary testing thereby excluding the operator from the selection process, which may create problems for the city as it is governed by bidding requirements relating to the expenditure of public funds. Specifically, the city of Mesa notes that it could be problematic if the state chooses to utilize the higher of two bids submitted by laboratories performing the same service. The city of Mesa further commented that it was in the process of seeking a ruling on this issue and would submit any such ruling as soon as it was obtained.

AUG comments that OPS’ selection of the laboratory in conjunction with subsection (b)(v), which requires the operator to pay for the testing, may violate the procurement laws for municipal or governmental entities.

Staff comments that the issue requires consideration as it was not specifically taken into account in this rulemaking, yet staff further comments that it does not believe that the concerns expressed by the city of Mesa are directly in conflict with the proposed amendment to the rule.

Analysis: We agree with staff. The city of Mesa did not provide demonstrable evidence, in the form of a ruling, that payment by the operator violates its procurement laws, and consequently, the issue has not been shown to be in direct conflict with the proposed rule. It is, however, an issue which requires further consideration by the parties at a future workshop.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 6: AUG comments that there could be legal conflicts with the state becoming involved in the selection of laboratories and types of tests, especially in those instances where litigation is involved. AUG further comments that increased legal liabilities that may result from this may be too great for industry to bear.

Staff comments that as the primary agency for regulating pipeline safety within the state, it is appropriate for OPS to directly regulate laboratory testing and that it is in the public interest and ensures public safety to do so.

Analysis: We agree with staff. AUG’s comments are speculative and do not present a demonstrable cost that outweighs the benefit to the public safety afforded by granting authority to OPS to select the laboratory and type of tests to be conducted.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 7: El Paso comments that the role delineated in the rule for OPS, namely determining the facility to be used and overseeing laboratory testing, should be limited to those instances in which the damage is the result of an “incident” rather than a mere “failure,” and it is discovered that the operator’s facilities are not appropriate or that the testing cannot occur in a timely fashion.

Staff comments that as the primary agency for regulating pipeline safety within the state, it is appropriate for OPS to directly regulate laboratory testing and that it is in the public interest and ensures public safety to do so.

Analysis: We agree with staff that OPS is the appropriate entity to maintain control over the selection of laboratory and testing of materials.

Resolution: No change required.

R14-5-202(S)(3)(b)(v)

Issue: SWG comments that this subsection requires an operator to pay for the OPS’ material testing in the absence of a finding by an adjudicatory body that there has been a violation of a pipeline safety rule by the operator or that there is a nexus between the testing and that violation. SWG further comments that this rule is especially problematic in those instances where an operator contests the testing and/or analysis of the OPS’ selected laboratory and that dispute becomes central to an enforcement proceeding prosecuted by the staff against the operator.

In that instance, SWG argues that the operator will bear the penalty of paying for what will be staff’s expert witness before there is even a hearing on the alleged violation. According to SWG, this would permit the Commission to shift the cost of its own investigation onto the operator as a penalty in violation of A.R.S. § 40-442(C), which requires that “[a]ll monies collected from civil penalties assessed pursuant to this article. . .shall be deposited. . .in the state general fund.”

Staff comments that pipeline safety regulation stems from A.R.S. § 40-441 such that the requirement that the operator pay for the laboratory testing is not a violation of Arizona law. Staff further comments that requiring operators to pay for testing is not punitive, that operators currently pay for laboratory testing, and that regulators can impose certain costs and payment for performance of certain functions on operators. Staff adds that laboratory testing is often done before any report is issued and before any adversary administrative proceeding commences. Since requiring the operator to pay costs for laboratory testing is not a penalty, A.R.S. § 40-422 is not implicated. Staff further adds that nothing precludes an operator from having its own testing done and proffering evidence and testimony from that testing.

Notices of Final Rulemaking

Analysis: We agree with staff that promulgation of a rule by which the operator is required to pay for necessary laboratory testing is not a violation of Arizona law. Additionally, we do not believe that SWG has established that the operator's obligation for payment constitutes a penalty such that A.R.S. § 40-422 is implicated and/or violated.

Resolution: No change required.

R14-5-202(S)(4)

Issue 1: SWG comments that by allowing a Commission administrative law judge to affirm or reject the operator's selection of the laboratory or the number and types of tests to be performed, and that if adjudication is made to resolve a discovery dispute, the Commission may be insulated from civil liability to injured persons as some form of judicial immunity may apply.

Staff comments that the OPS is the agency responsible for the safety of intrastate pipelines, and therefore, the OPS, rather than an administrative law judge or independent arbiter, should have the final word if a dispute arises.

Analysis: We agree with staff. The rule does not provide for implementation of a review by an administrative law judge as the OPS should make the final determination with regard to the laboratory and number and types of tests chosen. Moreover, as previously indicated, it is unclear the extent to which the Commission would be insulated from liability if discovery disputes were to be adjudicated by a Commission administrative law judge.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 2: SWG comments, and AUG agrees, that the language of the rule as proposed by staff should be deleted and should be amended to read as follows:

4. The rules provided in A.A.C. R14-3-101 through A.A.C. R14-3-113 shall govern disputes between the operator and the Office of Pipeline Safety concerning the laboratory testing conducted in accordance with this Section, including but not limited to the selection of the third-party laboratory, the number and type of tests, and the location and timing of such tests. Destructive testing shall not be conducted on any removed portion of a pipeline once a party receives written notification from the other party that a dispute exists and is subject to resolution under this subsection.

SWG and AUG believe that such a provision would provide for a neutral third party arbiter should a dispute arise as to the laboratory chosen, the number and types of tests performed, and/or the test procedures to be utilized.

Staff comments that the OPS is the agency responsible for the safety of intrastate pipelines, and therefore, the OPS, rather than an administrative law judge or independent arbiter, should have the final word if a dispute arises.

Analysis: We agree with staff. The rule does not provide for implementation of a review by an administrative law judge as the OPS should make the final determination with regard to the laboratory and number and types of tests chosen.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 3: SWG comments that should the rule be amended such that OPS is the final arbiter of a dispute between it and the operator over the manner of testing and resolves those disputes in its own favor, then the operator may allege that its constitutional due process rights have been abridged by the OPS' summary edicts and that the testing ordered by OPS resulted in the destruction of evidence if the OPS later assumes a prosecutorial role in an enforcement action in which the OPS advocates the imposition of penalties against the operator.

SWG further comments that in this situation, an operator will allege that it is entitled to a proper remedy, which may include the preclusion of the test results in any enforcement action or outright dismissal of the enforcement action.

Staff comments that evidence of laboratory test results may be suppressed but only under certain limited circumstances, and suppressing evidence is a radical remedy that should only occur in very egregious situations. Additionally, staff indicates that in a criminal proceeding, for example, the destruction of evidence may result in an unfavorable inference to the state but would not result in the suppression of the lab results.

Staff further comments that as long as some of the removed portion of the pipeline is preserved so that other parties can conduct testing, there is no prejudice or denial of due process. Suppression as a possible remedy does not mean that it is probable, and the Commission should not fear approving these rules just because of the remote possibility that a scenario may arise where the lab results could be suppressed.

Analysis: We agree with staff that an operator's due process rights will not be violated by destructive testing so long as either a sample is preserved for alternative testing or the parties reach an agreement on the destructive testing prior to its undertaking. Additionally, we agree with both parties that issues concerning destruction of evidence and appropriate sanctions should be decided on a case-by-case basis such that it is not possible to predict the degree to which destructive testing will render the state incapable of prosecuting any potential violations against the operator. Consequently, we believe the amended rule should be adopted.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 4: The city of Mesa comments that the rule directs the OPS to determine the laboratory that will do the necessary testing thereby excluding the operator from the selection process, which may create problems for the city as it is

Notices of Final Rulemaking

governed by bidding requirements relating to the expenditure of public funds. Specifically, the city of Mesa notes that it could be problematic if the state chooses to utilize the higher of two bids submitted by laboratories performing the same service. The city of Mesa further commented that it was in the process of seeking a ruling on this issue and would submit any such ruling as soon as it was obtained.

Staff comments that the issue requires consideration as it was not specifically taken into account in this rulemaking, yet staff further comments that it does not believe that the concerns expressed by the city of Mesa are directly in conflict with the proposed amendment to the rule.

Analysis: We agree with staff. The city of Mesa did not provide demonstrable evidence, in the form of a ruling, that payment by the operator violates its procurement laws, and consequently, the issue has not been shown to be in direct conflict with the proposed rule. It is, however, an issue which requires further consideration by the parties at a future workshop.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 5: AUG comments that there are potential problems with a bid process conducted by the state in which the operators will be limited to three laboratories and no provisions are mentioned for cases in which three bids are not available.

Staff comments that the rules require that a written request be submitted to at least three laboratories, and if no response to the bids is received after 30 days, then OPS can choose a laboratory.

Analysis: We agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

R14-5-203 – Pipeline Incident Reports and Investigations

R14-5-203(B)(2)(f)(ii)

Issue 1: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees to the amendment with one exception, addition of the word “and” such that the phrase “and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff.

Resolution: Delete “and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State.”

Issue 2: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 3: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that “Office of Pipeline Safety” is defined in R14-5-201 as “the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission,” and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the “Commission Office of Pipeline Safety” to “Office of Pipeline Safety” to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete “Commission” immediately preceding “Office of Pipeline Safety.”

R14-5-203(B)(2)(g)

Issue: The SOS comments that references to paragraph, subparagraph, or item should be changed to subsection to conform to the *Arizona Rulemaking Manual*.

Staff agrees and comments that the sentence “[a]ny release of hazardous liquid or carbon dioxide, that was significant in the judgment of the operator even though it did not meet the criteria of any other paragraph of this section,” should be changed to “[a]ny release of hazardous liquid or carbon dioxide, that was significant in the judgment of the operator even though it did not meet the criteria of this subsection.”

Analysis: We agree with staff and the SOS.

Resolution: Replace “of any other paragraph of this section” with “of this subsection.”

Notices of Final Rulemaking

R14-5-203(C)(2)(a)

Issue 1: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees to the amendment with one exception, addition of the word “and” such that the phrase “and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff.

Resolution: Delete “and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State.”

Issue 2: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 3: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that “Office of Pipeline Safety” is defined in R14-5-201 as “the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission,” and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the “Commission Office of Pipeline Safety” to “Office of Pipeline Safety” to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete “Commission” immediately preceding “Office of Pipeline Safety.”

Issue 4: After the Commission approved the final version before it in Decision No. 67442 on December 3, 2004, there was concern over why, for Federal Form RSPA F7100.1, no date is provided along with the language “and no future editions.”

Analysis: The Commission, through its Office of Pipeline Safety, does not oppose adding the date of the most recent revision for RSPA F7100.1. Since the change is not a substantial change, the Commission does not need to render a subsequent decision approving the change per Decision No. 67442.

Resolution: The resolution, post-Commission decision, is to add “(March 2004 Revision and no future revisions)” after “Report,” in R14-5-203(C)(2)(a).

R14-5-203(C)(2)(b)

Issue 1: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees to the amendment with one exception, addition of the word “and” such that the phrase “and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff.

Resolution: Delete “and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State.”

Issue 2: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 3: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that “Office of Pipeline Safety” is defined in R14-5-201 as “the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission,” and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the “Commission Office of Pipeline Safety” to “Office of Pipeline Safety” to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Notices of Final Rulemaking

Resolution: Delete “Commission” immediately preceding “Office of Pipeline Safety.”

Issue 4: After the Commission approved the final version before it in Decision No. 67442 on December 3, 2004, there was concern over why, for Federal Form RSPA F7100.2, no date is provided along with the language “and no future editions.”

Analysis: The Commission, through its Office of Pipeline Safety, does not oppose adding the date of the most recent revision for RSPA F7100.1. Since the change is not a substantial change, the Commission does not need to render a subsequent decision approving the change per Decision No. 67442.

Resolution: The resolution, post-Commission decision, is to add “(January 2002 Revision and no future revisions)” after “Report,” in R14-5-203(C)(2)(b).

R14-5-203(C)(3)

Issue 1: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees to the amendment with one exception, addition of the word “and” such that the phrase “and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff.

Resolution: Delete “and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State.”

Issue 2: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 3: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that “Office of Pipeline Safety” is defined in R14-5-201 as “the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission,” and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the “Commission Office of Pipeline Safety” to “Office of Pipeline Safety” to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete “Commission” immediately preceding “Office of Pipeline Safety.”

R14-5-203(C)(3)(c)(ii)

Issue 1: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees to the amendment with one exception, addition of the word “and” such that the phrase “and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff.

Resolution: Delete “and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State.”

Issue 2: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 3: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that “Office of Pipeline Safety” is defined in R14-5-201 as “the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission,” and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the “Commission Office of Pipeline Safety” to “Office of Pipeline Safety” to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Notices of Final Rulemaking

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete "Commission" immediately preceding "Office of Pipeline Safety."

R14-5-204 – Annual Reports

R14-5-204(A)(1)

Issue 1: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 2: AUG comments that the report forms used by the Commission should be the current forms specified by the federal regulations. AUG suggests, therefore, that the Commission adopt the most current version of the federal pipeline incident reporting and Annual Report forms.

Staff comments that the form and noted edition is the most recent as of July 6, 2004. Staff recommends, however, that the word "Edition" should be added after "February 2004."

Analysis: We agree with staff that the form and noted edition is the most recent.

Resolution: Insert "Edition" after "February 2004."

R14-5-204(A)(2)

Issue 1: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State" be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees and states that the phrase "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State" should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff and the SOS.

Resolution: Delete "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State."

Issue 2: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 3: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggests that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that "Office of Pipeline Safety" is defined in R14-5-201 as "the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission," and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the "Commission Office of Pipeline Safety" to "Office of Pipeline Safety" to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete "Commission" immediately preceding "Office of Pipeline Safety."

Issue 4: AUG comments that the report forms used by the Commission should be the current forms specified by the federal regulations. AUG suggests, therefore, that the Commission adopt the most current version of the federal pipeline incident reporting and Annual Report forms.

Staff agrees with AUG's comments and recommends that the most recent edition be cited in the rule. Accordingly, staff recommends adding "for use in 2004; March 2005 Edition" before "and no future editions" and adding ", which can be used in 2004 but will become mandatory starting in 2005" thereafter.

Analysis: We agree with staff.

Resolution: Amend subsection (2) to read "November 1985 Edition for use in 2004; March 2005 Edition and no future editions, which can be used in 2004 but will become mandatory starting in 2005."

Notices of Final Rulemaking

R14-5-204(A)(3)

Issue 1: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees and states that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff and the SOS.

Resolution: Delete “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State.”

Issue 2: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 3: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggests that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that “Office of Pipeline Safety” is defined in R14-5-201 as “the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission,” and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the “Commission Office of Pipeline Safety” to “Office of Pipeline Safety” to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete “Commission” immediately preceding “Office of Pipeline Safety.”

Issue 4: AUG comments that the report forms used by the Commission should be the current forms specified by the federal regulations. AUG suggests, therefore, that the Commission adopt the most current version of the federal pipeline incident reporting and Annual Report forms.

Staff agrees with AUG’s comments and recommends that the most recent edition be cited in the rule. Accordingly, staff recommends deleting “January 2002” as the noted edition and adding “December 2003.”

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Replace “January 2002” with “December 2003.”

R14-5-205 – Master Meter System Operators

R14-5-205

Issue: The AUG comments that internet addresses should be provided for each agency or entity referenced.

Subsequent to a workshop meeting, staff and AUG agree to consider this proposal in an upcoming workshop.

Analysis: We agree with AUG and staff that this issue should be addressed in a future workshop.

Resolution: No change required

R14-5-205(B)

Issue 1: The AUG comments that the address listed for the U.S. Government Printing Office should be updated to reflect its warehouse services address, which is 8660 Cherry Lane, Laurel, MD 20707.

Staff comments that the address should be changed to P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954.

Analysis: We agree with staff. The U.S. Government Printing Office web site indicates that orders by mail should be sent to P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954.

Resolution: Replace “P.O. Box 371975M, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7975” with “P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954.”

Issue 2: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees and states that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff and the SOS.

Resolution: Delete “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State.”

Notices of Final Rulemaking

Issue 3: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 4: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggests that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that "Office of Pipeline Safety" is defined in R14-5-201 as "the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission," and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the "Commission Office of Pipeline Safety" to "Office of Pipeline Safety" to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete "Commission" immediately preceding "Office of Pipeline Safety."

R14-5-205(G)

Issue 1: The AUG comments that the address listed for the U.S. Government Printing Office should be updated to reflect its warehouse services address, which is 8660 Cherry Lane, Laurel, MD 20707.

Staff comments that the address should be changed to P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954.

Analysis: We agree with staff. The U.S. Government Printing Office web site indicates that orders by mail should be sent to P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954.

Resolution: Replace "P.O. Box 371975M, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7975" with "P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954."

Issue 2: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State" be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees and states that the phrase "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State" should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff and the SOS.

Resolution: Delete "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State."

Issue 3: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 4: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that "Office of Pipeline Safety" is defined in R14-5-201 as "the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission," and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the "Commission Office of Pipeline Safety" to "Office of Pipeline Safety" to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete "Commission" immediately preceding "Office of Pipeline Safety."

R14-5-205(I)

Issue: Staff comments that as this subsection addresses bedding and shading for master meter system operators, it should be amended in accordance with the proposed amendment for R14-5-202(O) by retaining the phrase "using plastic pipe" and adding the sentence, "Steel pipe shall be installed with bedding and shading, free of any debris or materials injurious to the pipe coating, unless otherwise protected and approved by the Office of Pipeline Safety" at the end of the subsection.

Analysis: We agree with staff.

Notices of Final Rulemaking

Resolution: Add "Steel pipe shall be installed with bedding and shading, free of any debris or materials injurious to the pipe coating, unless otherwise protected and approved by the Office of Pipeline Safety" at the end of the subsection.

R14-5-205(J)

Issue 1: AUG comments that the reference to ASTM should be updated to reflect the fact that the organization is now referred to as ASTM International.

Staff agrees with AUG's comment and adds that the address listed for ASTM should be updated to reflect the new address, which is 100 Barr Harbor Drive, P.O. Box C700, West Conshohocken, Pennsylvania 19428-2959.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Replace "the ASTM, 1916 Race Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-1187," with "ASTM International, 100 Barr Harbor Drive, P.O. Box C700, West Conshohocken, Pennsylvania 19428-2959."

Issue 2: To maintain conformity between the provisions for operators of intrastate pipelines and master meter system operators, this subsection should be amended in the same manner proposed by staff for R14-5-202(P). In reference to R14-5-202(P), staff and AUG agree that the phrase "shall be marked 'Gas' and" should be deleted such that the subsection should read, "In addition, all plastic pipe and fittings shall be marked CD, CE, CF, or CG as required by ASTM D2513."

Analysis: We believe that the subsection should be amended in conformity with R14-5-202(P).

Resolution: Delete "shall be marked 'Gas' and."

Issue 3: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State" be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees and states that the phrase "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State" should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff and the SOS.

Resolution: Delete "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State."

Issue 4: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 5: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that "Office of Pipeline Safety" is defined in R14-5-201 as "the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission," and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the "Commission Office of Pipeline Safety" to "Office of Pipeline Safety" to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete "Commission" immediately preceding "Office of Pipeline Safety."

R14-5-205(O)

Issue 1: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State" be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees and states that the phrase "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State" should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff and the SOS.

Resolution: Delete "on file with the Office of the Secretary of State."

Issue 2: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Notices of Final Rulemaking

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 3: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that “Office of Pipeline Safety” is defined in R14-5-201 as “the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission,” and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the “Commission Office of Pipeline Safety” to “Office of Pipeline Safety” to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete “Commission” immediately preceding “Office of Pipeline Safety.”

R14-5-205(P)

Issue: The SOS comments that references to “paragraph,” “subparagraph,” or “item” should be changed to “subsection” to conform to the *Arizona Rulemaking Manual*.

Staff agrees and recommends conforming changes to utilize the term “subsection.”

Analysis: We agree with the SOS and staff.

Resolution: Replace all references to “paragraph,” “subparagraph,” and “item” with “subsection.”

R14-5-205(P)(1)

Issue: Staff comments that R14-2-205(P)(1) should be amended in accordance with the amendment proposed for R14-2-202(S)(1) as it is the corollary provision applicable to master meter operators.

Analysis: We agree with staff, yet we believe that two minor modifications in the language of the proposed rule would provide clarity. Specifically, subsection (1) should be amended by inserting the phrase “where the cause of the failure is unknown” immediately after “failed pipeline,” and subsequently, the word “from” should be replaced with the phrase “as the result of” such that the sentence reads as follows: “If an operator of an intrastate natural gas, other gas, or hazardous liquid pipeline removes a portion of a failed pipeline, where the cause of the failure is unknown, as the result of an incident that requires a telephonic or written incident report under R14-5-203(B) or (C), the operator shall retain the portion that was removed and shall telephonically notify the Office of Pipeline Safety of the removal within two hours after the removal is completed.”

Resolution: Amend 205(P)(1) to read as follows:

- P. Laboratory testing of master meter systems shall be conducted in accordance with the following:
1. If an operator of a master meter system, other gas or hazardous liquid pipeline removes a portion of a failed pipeline, where the cause of the failure is unknown, as the result of an incident that requires a telephonic or written incident report under R14-5-203(B) or (C), the operator shall retain the portion that was removed and shall telephonically notify the Office of Pipeline Safety of the removal within two hours after the removal is completed. A notice made pursuant to this subsection shall include all of the following:
 - a. Identity of the failed pipeline,
 - b. Description and location of the failure,
 - c. Date and time of the removal,
 - d. Length or quantity of the removed portion,
 - e. Storage location of the removed portion,
 - f. Any additional information about the failure or the removal of the portion of the pipeline that failed that is requested by the Office of Pipeline Safety.

An unknown failure is any failure where the cause of the failure is not observable external corrosion, third-party damage, natural or other outside forces, construction or material defect, equipment malfunction or incorrect operations; or is any failure where the Office of Pipeline Safety and the operator do not agree as to the cause of the failure.

R14-5-205(P)(2)

Issue: To the extent that 205(P)(1) is amended as stated above, we believe that 205(P)(2) should be amended in accordance with any amendments to 202(S)(2).

Analysis: Accordingly, the word “telephonic” and additional language directing the Office of Pipeline Safety to confirm its notification in writing should be added to this subsection in accordance with the proposed amendment to 202(S)(2). Clarifying that the notification pursuant to subsection (1) is telephonic in nature creates consistency among the subsections. Additionally, requiring the OPS to confirm the telephonic notification in writing is not unduly burdensome, would improve clarity, and would eliminate any dispute as to whether telephonic notification had been effected.

Additionally, we believe that the word “that” should be moved and inserted between the words “operator” and “either” in the second line of the subsection.

Resolution: Amend 205(P)(2) to read as follows:

Notices of Final Rulemaking

2. Within 48 hours after telephonic notification pursuant to subsection (1), the Office of Pipeline Safety shall notify the operator that either:
 - a. The Office of Pipeline Safety is directing the operator to have the portion of the pipeline that was removed tested by a laboratory to determine the cause or causes of the failure; or
 - b. The Office of Pipeline Safety is not directing laboratory testing and the operator may discard the portion of the pipeline that was removed.

The Office of Pipeline Safety shall confirm its notification in writing.

R14-5-205(Q)

Issue 1: The SOS comments that it will no longer maintain incorporated by reference materials on file and therefore requests that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” be stricken from the final rulemaking package.

Staff agrees and states that the phrase “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State” should be stricken.

Analysis: We agree with staff and the SOS.

Resolution: Delete “on file with the Office of the Secretary of State.”

Issue 2: The AUG comments that contact information for the Office of the Secretary of State should be provided in the regulation.

Staff comments that based upon information from the SOS indicating that it will no longer have incorporated by reference materials on file, contact information should not be included in the final rulemaking package.

Analysis: As it would be confusing to add contact information for an agency no longer maintaining the incorporated by reference materials, we agree with staff.

Resolution: No change required.

Issue 3: The AUG comments that the rules utilize inconsistent references to the Office of Pipeline Safety and suggest that references thereto be consistent with R14-5-202(C).

Staff comments that “Office of Pipeline Safety” is defined in R14-5-201 as “the Pipeline Safety personnel for the Commission,” and consequently, staff recommends changing references to the “Commission Office of Pipeline Safety” to “Office of Pipeline Safety” to ensure consistency throughout the rules.

Analysis: We agree with staff and AUG.

Resolution: Delete “Commission” immediately preceding “Office of Pipeline Safety.”

11. A summary of the comments made regarding the rule and the agency response to them:

See item #10.

12. Any other matters prescribed by statute that are applicable to the specific agency or to any specific rule or class of rules:

None

13. Incorporated by reference and their location in the rules:

Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Parts 40, 191, 192, except I(2) of Appendix D to Part 192, 193, 195 (except 195.1(b)(2) and (3)) and 199. These regulations cover the minimum safety standards for construction and operation of gas and hazardous liquid pipelines. These regulations may be found at the Arizona Corporation Commission, Office of Pipeline Safety, 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004. These regulations are incorporated by reference in the amended rules at: R14-5-202(B), E(1), E(2), (G), (J), (K), (O), (P), (R), (S), (T), R14-5-203 (B)(1)(f), (C)(2)(a), (C)(2)(b), (C)(3)(c), R14-5-204(A), (A)(1), (A)(2), (A)(3), and R14-5-205(B), (G), (J), (O), (P), and (Q).

14. Was this rule previously made as an emergency rule?

No

15. The full text of the rules follows:

TITLE 14. PUBLIC SERVICE CORPORATIONS; CORPORATIONS AND

ASSOCIATIONS; SECURITIES REGULATION

CHAPTER 5. CORPORATION COMMISSION - TRANSPORTATION

ARTICLE 2. PIPELINE SAFETY

Section

- R14-5-202. Construction and Safety Standards
- R14-5-203. Pipeline Incident Reports and Investigations
- R14-5-204. Annual Reports
- R14-5-205. Master Meter System Operators

ARTICLE 2. PIPELINE SAFETY

R14-5-202. Construction and Safety Standards

- A. Applicability: This rule applies to the construction, reconstruction, repair, operation and maintenance of all intrastate natural gas, other gas, LNG and hazardous liquid pipeline systems, as described in ARS § 40-441.
- B. Subject to the definitional changes in R14-5-201 and the revisions noted in subsection (C), the Commission adopts, incorporates, and approves as its own 49 CFR 40, 191, 192 except I (2) and (3) of Appendix D to Part 192, 193, 195, except 195.1(b)(2) and (3), and 199, revised as of ~~January 16, 2002~~ January 15, 2004 (and no future amendments), incorporated by reference, ~~on file with the Office of the Secretary of State, and copies available from the Commission Office of Pipeline Safety, 1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007~~ 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004 and the United States Government Printing Office, P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954~~P.O. Box 371975M, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7975~~.
- C. The above mentioned incorporated Parts of 49 CFR, except Parts 191, 193 Subpart A and 195 Subpart A and B, are revised as follows:
 - 1. Substitute "Commission" where "Administrator of the Research and Special Programs Administration" or "Office of Pipeline Safety" (OPS) appear.
 - 2. Substitute "Office of Pipeline Safety, Arizona Corporation Commission, at its office in Phoenix, Arizona" where the address for the Information Resources Manager, Office of Pipeline Safety, Research and Special Programs Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation appears.
- D. Operators of an intrastate pipeline will file with the Commission an Operation and Maintenance Plan (O & M), including an emergency plan, 30 days prior to placing a pipeline system into operation. Any changes in existing plans will be filed within 30 days of the effective date of the change.
- E. Operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting sour gas or oil are subject to industry standards addressing facilities handling hydrogen sulfide (H₂S). Standards adopted are:
 - 1. NACE Standard MR-0175-99 (1999 Revision); (and no future revisions), Standard Materials Requirements-Sulfide Stress Cracking Resistant Metallic Material for Oilfield Equipment, incorporated by reference and no future amendments. Copies are available from the ~~Commission Office of Pipeline Safety, 1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007~~ 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004 and the NACE International, 1440 South Creek Drive, Houston, Texas 77084-4906 ~~P.O. Box 218340, Houston, Texas 77218-8340~~ and ~~on file with the Office of the Secretary of State.~~
 - 2. API RP55 (1995 Edition); (and no future amendments), API recommended practice for conducting oil and gas production operations involving hydrogen sulfide, incorporated by reference and no future amendments. Copies are available from the ~~Commission Office of Pipeline Safety, 1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007~~ 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004 and Techstreet, 777 East Eisenhower Parkway, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48108 ~~the CSSINFO, 310 Miller Avenue, Ann Arbor, Michigan, 48103~~ and ~~on file with the Office of the Secretary of State.~~
- F. Operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting LNG, hazardous liquid, natural gas or other gas will not construct any part of a hazardous liquid, LNG, natural gas or other gas pipeline system under a building. For building encroachments over a pipeline system, the operator may require the property owner to remove the building from over the pipeline or reimburse the operator the cost associated with relocating the pipeline system. The encroachment shall be resolved within 180 days of discovery, or the operator shall discontinue service to the pipeline system. When the encroachment cannot be resolved within the 180 days the operator shall submit to the Office of Pipeline Safety within 90 days of discovery a written plan to resolve the encroachment. The Office of Pipeline Safety may then extend the 180-day requirement in order to allow the ratepayer and the operator to implement the written plan to resolve the encroachment.
- G. Operators of an intrastate distribution pipeline transporting ~~LNG, hazardous liquid,~~ natural gas or other gas will not con-

Notices of Final Rulemaking

struct any part of a pipeline system closer than 8 inches to any other underground structure. If the 8-inch clearance cannot be maintained from other underground structures, a sleeve, casing, or shielding shall be used.

- H. Operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting natural gas or other gas that have regulators, meters, or regulation meter sets that have been out of service for 36 months will abandon those lines and cap all ends. The Operator's steps to accomplish the abandonment shall not exceed six months beyond the 36 months out service status.
- I. Operators of an intrastate pipeline shall not install or operate a gas regulator that might release gas in its operation closer than 3 feet to a source of ignition, opening into a building, air intake into a building or to any electrical source not intrinsically safe. The three foot clearance from a source of ignition will be measured from the vent or source of release (discharge port), not from the physical location of the meter set assembly. This subsection shall not be effective with respect to building permits which are issued and subdivisions which are platted prior to October 1, 2000. For encroachment within the required three foot clearance caused by an action of the property owner, occupant or a service provider, after the effective date of this rule the operator may require the property owner to resolve the encroachment or reimburse the operator the cost associated with relocating the pipeline system. The encroachment shall be resolved within 180 days of discovery or the operator shall discontinue service to the effected pipeline system. When the encroachment cannot be resolved within the 180 days the operator shall submit to the Office of Pipeline Safety within 90 days of discovery a written plan to resolve the encroachment. The Office of Pipeline Safety may then extend the 180-day requirement in order to allow the ratepayer and the operator to implement the written plan to resolve the encroachment.
- J. Operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting LNG, natural gas, other gases or hazardous liquid will utilize a cathodic protection system designed to protect the metallic pipeline in its entirety, in accordance with 49 CFR 192, Subpart I, ~~January 16, 2002~~ January 15, 2004 (and no future amendments), incorporated by reference, ~~on file with the Office of the Secretary of State,~~ and copies available from the ~~Commission~~ Office of Pipeline Safety, ~~1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007~~ 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004, and the United States Government Printing Office, P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954, P.O. Box 371975M, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7975 except I (2) and (3) of Appendix D to Part 192 shall not be utilized.
- K. Operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting natural gas or other gas will not use solvent cement to join together plastic pipe manufactured from different materials unless the operator utilizes a joining procedure in accordance with the specifications of 49 CFR 192, Subpart F, ~~January 16, 2002~~ January 15, 2004 (and no future amendments), incorporated by reference, ~~on file with the Office of the Secretary of State,~~ and copies available from the ~~Commission~~ Office of Pipeline Safety, ~~1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007~~ 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004, and the United States Government Printing Office, P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954 P.O. Box 371975M, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7975.
- L. Operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting hazardous liquid, natural gas or other gas will not install Acrylonitrile-Butadiene-Styrene (ABS) or aluminum pipe in their pipeline systems.
- M. Operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting hazardous liquid, natural gas or other gas will not install plastic pipe aboveground unless the plastic pipeline is protected by a metal casing, or equivalent, and approved by the Office of Pipeline Safety. Temporary aboveground plastic pipeline bypasses are permitted for up to sixty (60) days, provided that the plastic pipeline is protected and is under the direct supervision of the operator at all times.
- N. Operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting hazardous liquid, natural gas or other gas that construct a pipeline system or any portion thereof using plastic pipe, will install, at a minimum, a 14-gauge coated or corrosion resistant, electrically conductive wire as a means of locating the pipe while it is underground. Tracer wire shall not be wrapped around the plastic pipe, tracer wire may be taped, or attached in some manner to the pipe provided that the adhesive or the attachment is not detrimental to the integrity of the pipe wall.
- O. Operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting natural gas, ~~or other gas~~ or hazardous liquid, pipeline system that construct an underground pipeline system using plastic pipe, will bury the installed pipe with a minimum of 6 inches of sandy type soil surrounding the pipe for bedding and shading, free of any rock or debris, unless otherwise protected and approved by the Office of Pipeline Safety. Steel pipe shall be installed with bedding and shading, free of any debris or materials injurious to the pipe coating, unless otherwise protected and approved by the Office of Pipeline Safety.
- P. Operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting natural gas or other gas ~~pipeline system~~ that construct an underground pipeline system using plastic pipe will install the pipe with sufficient slack to allow for thermal expansion and contraction. ~~In addition, all plastic pipe shall be marked CD or CE as required by ASTM D2513-95e~~ In addition, all plastic pipe and fittings shall be marked CD, CE, CF, or CG as required by ASTM D2513 (1995c Edition and no future editions), incorporated by reference, ~~on file with the Office of the Secretary of State,~~ and copies available from the ~~Commission~~ Office of Pipeline Safety, ~~1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007~~ 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004 and ASTM International, 100 Barr Harbor Drive, P.O. Box C700, West Conshohocken, Pennsylvania 19428-2959, the ASTM, 1916 Race Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-1187, for areas where the service temperature is above 100°F.
- Q. Operators of an intrastate pipeline system transporting hazardous liquid, natural gas or other gases shall qualify welding procedures and shall perform welding of steel pipelines in accordance with API Standard 1104. Each welder must be qualified in accordance with API Standard 1104, 49 CFR 192, appendix A. The qualification of welders delineated in 49 CFR

Notices of Final Rulemaking

192, appendix C may be used for low stress level pipe.

- R. Operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting natural gas or other gas pipeline system shall survey and grade all detected leakage by the following guide: ASME Guide for Gas Transmission and Distribution Pipeline System, Guide Material, Appendix G-11-1983 except 4.4(c) (1983 Revision and no future revisions), incorporated by reference ~~and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State~~ and copies available from the ~~Commission~~ Office of Pipeline Safety, ~~1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007~~ 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004 and the ASME, United Engineering Center, 345 East 47th Street, New York, N. Y. 10017. (“Should” as referenced in the Guide will be interpreted to mean “shall”). Leakage survey records shall identify in some manner each pipeline surveyed. Records shall be maintained to demonstrate that the required leakage survey has been conducted.

S. Laboratory testing of intrastate pipelines shall be conducted in accordance with the following:

1. If an operator of an intrastate natural gas, other gas, or hazardous liquid pipeline removes a portion of a failed pipeline, where the cause of the failure is unknown, as the result of an incident that requires a telephonic or written incident report under R14-5-203(B) or (C), the operator shall retain the portion that was removed and shall telephonically notify the Office of Pipeline Safety of the removal within two hours after the removal is completed. A notice made pursuant to this subsection shall include all of the following:
- a. Identity of the failed pipeline.
 - b. Description and location of the failure.
 - c. Date and time of the removal.
 - d. Length or quantity of the removed portion.
 - e. Storage location of the removed portion.
 - f. Any additional information about the failure or the removal of the portion of the pipeline that failed that is requested by the Office of Pipeline Safety.

An unknown failure is any failure where the cause of the failure is not observable external corrosion, third-party damage, natural or other outside forces, construction or material defect, equipment malfunction or incorrect operations; or is any failure where the Office of Pipeline Safety and the operator do not agree as to the cause of the failure.

2. Within 48 hours after telephonic notification pursuant to subsection (1), the Office of Pipeline Safety shall notify the operator that either:
- a. The Office of Pipeline Safety is directing the operator to have the portion of the pipeline that was removed tested by a laboratory to determine the cause or causes of the failure; or
 - b. The Office of Pipeline Safety is not directing laboratory testing and the operator may discard the portion of the pipeline that was removed.

The Office of Pipeline Safety shall confirm its notification in writing.

3. If the Office of Pipeline Safety directs laboratory testing pursuant to subsection (2)(a):
- a. The Office of Pipeline Safety shall:
 - i. Determine the laboratory that will do the testing pursuant to subsection (4) and the period of time within which the testing is to be completed.
 - ii. Approve the number and types of tests to be performed.
 - iii. Notify the operator of its determinations pursuant to subsections (3)(a)(i) and (ii).
 - b. The operator shall:
 - i. Notify the Office of Pipeline Safety of the number and types of tests proposed by the operator.
 - ii. Notify the Office of Pipeline Safety of the date and time of any laboratory tests at least 20 days before the tests are done.
 - iii. At the request of the Office of Pipeline Safety, ensure that a representative of the Office of Pipeline Safety is permitted to observe any or all of the tests.
 - iv. Ensure that the original laboratory test results are provided to the Office of Pipeline Safety within 30 days of the completion of the tests.
 - v. Pay for the laboratory testing.
4. In determining a laboratory pursuant to subsection (3)(a)(i), the Office of Pipeline Safety shall:
- a. Submit a written request to at least three different laboratories for bids to conduct the testing.
 - b. Consider the qualifications of the respondent laboratories to perform the testing, including:
 - i. Past experience in performing the required test or tests according to ASTM International standards.
 - ii. Any recognition that the laboratory may demonstrate with national or international laboratory accreditation bodies.
 - c. Select the laboratory that offers the optimum balance between cost and demonstrated ability to perform the required test or tests.
 - d. The Office of Pipeline Safety shall not select a laboratory pursuant to this subsection before either of the following, whichever occurs first:
 - i. The Office of Pipeline Safety has received written bids from at least three different laboratories.
 - ii. Thirty days from the date of the request for bids has passed.

Notices of Final Rulemaking

- ~~S.T.~~ All repair work performed on an existing intrastate pipeline transporting LNG, hazardous liquids, natural gas or other gas pipeline system will comply with the provisions of this Article.
- ~~T.U.~~ The Commission may waive compliance with any of the aforementioned parts upon a finding that such a waiver is in the interest of public and pipeline safety.
- ~~U.V.~~ To ensure compliance with provisions of this rule the Commission or an authorized representative thereof may enter the premises of an operator of an intrastate pipeline to inspect and investigate the property, books, papers, business methods, and affairs that pertain to the pipeline system operation.
- ~~V.W.~~ All other Commission administrative rules are superseded to the extent they are in conflict with the pipeline safety provisions of this Article.

R14-5-203. Pipeline Incident Reports and Investigations

- A.** Applicability. This rule applies to all intrastate pipeline systems.
- B.** Required incident reports by telephone:
1. Operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting LNG, natural gas or other gas pipeline system will notify by telephone the Office of Pipeline Safety ~~immediately~~ upon discovery of the occurrence of any of the following:
 - a. The release of natural gas, other gas or liquefied natural gas (LNG) from a pipeline or LNG facility, when any of the following results:
 - i. Death or personal injury requiring hospitalization.
 - ii. An explosion or fire not intentionally set by the operator.
 - iii. Property damage, including the value of the gas lost, estimated in excess of \$5,000.
 - b. Emergency transmission pipeline shutdown.
 - c. News media inquiry.
 - d. Overpressure of a pipeline system where a pipeline operating at less than 12 PSIG exceeds MAOP by 50%, where a pipeline operating between 12 PSIG and 60 PSIG exceeds MAOP by 6 PSIG or where a pipeline operating over 60 PSIG exceeds MAOP plus 10%.
 - e. Permanent or temporary discontinuance of gas service to a master meter system or when assisting with the isolation of any portion of a gas master meter system due to a failure of a leak test.
 - f. Emergency shutdown of a LNG process or storage facility.
 2. Operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting hazardous liquid will notify by telephone the Office of Pipeline Safety immediately upon discovery of the occurrence of any of the following:
 - a. Death or personal injury requiring hospitalization.
 - b. An explosion or fire not intentionally set by the operator.
 - c. Property damage estimated in excess of \$5,000.
 - d. Pollution of any land, stream, river, lake, reservoir, or other body of water that violates applicable environmental quality, water quality standards, causes a discoloration of the surface of the water or adjoining shoreline, or deposits sludge or emulsion beneath the surface of the water or upon adjoining shorelines.
 - e. News media inquiry.
 - f. Release of 5 gallons (19 liters) or more of hazardous liquid or carbon dioxide, except that no report is required for a release of less than 5 barrels (0.8 cubic meters) resulting from a pipeline maintenance activity if the release is:
 - i. Not otherwise reportable under this Section;
 - ii. Not one described in 49 CFR 195.52(a)(4) (1994 revision and no future revisions), incorporated by reference ~~and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State~~ and copies available from the ~~Commission~~ Office of Pipeline Safety, ~~1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007~~ 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004;
 - iii. Confined to company property or pipeline right-of-way; and
 - iv. Cleaned up promptly.
 - g. Any release of hazardous liquid or carbon dioxide, that was significant in the judgment of the operator even though it did not meet the criteria of any other paragraph of this subsection.
 3. Telephone incident reports will include the following information:
 - a. Name of the pipeline system operator,
 - b. Name of the reporting party,
 - c. Job title of the reporting party,
 - d. The reporting party's telephone number,
 - e. Location of the incident,
 - f. Time of the incident, and
 - g. Fatalities and injuries, if any.
- C.** Require written incident report:
1. Operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting natural gas, LNG or other gases will file a written incident report when an incident occurs involving a natural gas or other gas pipeline that results in any of the following:

Notices of Final Rulemaking

- a. An explosion or fire not intentionally set by the operator.
 - b. Injury to a person that results in one or more of the following:
 - i. Death.
 - ii. Loss of consciousness.
 - iii. Need for medical treatment requiring hospitalization.
 - c. Property damage, including the value of the lost gas, estimated in excess of \$5,000.
 - d. Emergency transmission pipeline shutdown.
 - e. Overpressure of a pipeline system where a pipeline operating at less than 12 PSIG exceeds MAOP by 50%, where a pipeline operating between 12 PSIG and 60 PSIG exceeds MAOP by 6 PSIG or where a pipeline operating over 60 PSIG exceeds MAOP plus 10%.
 - f. Emergency shutdown of a LNG process or storage facility.
2. Written incident reports concerning natural gas or other gas pipeline systems will be in the following form:
- a. RSPA F7100.1 - Distribution System: Incident Report, (~~March 2004 Revision and no future revisions~~) incorporated by reference ~~and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State~~ and copies available from the ~~Commission~~ Office of Pipeline Safety, ~~1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007~~ 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004.
 - b. RSPA F7100.2 - Transmission and Gathering System: Incident Report, (~~January 2002 Revision and no future revisions~~) incorporated by reference ~~and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State~~ and copies available from the ~~Commission~~ Office of Pipeline Safety, ~~1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007~~ 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004.
 - c. Written incident reports with respect to LNG facilities will be in an investigative form defining the incident and corrective action taken to prevent a reoccurrence.
3. Operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting hazardous liquid will make a written incident report on RSPA F 7000-1, (January 2001 Revision and no future revisions), incorporated by reference ~~and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State~~, and copies available from the ~~Commission~~ Office of Pipeline Safety, ~~1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007~~ 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004, when there is a release of hazardous liquid which results in any of the following:
- a. An explosion or fire not intentionally set by the operator.
 - b. Injury to a person that results in one or more of the following:
 - i. Death.
 - ii. Loss of consciousness.
 - iii. Inability to leave the scene of the incident unassisted.
 - iv. Need for medical treatment.
 - v. Disability which interferes with a person's normal daily activities beyond the date of the incident.
 - c. Release of 5 gallons (19 liters) or more of hazardous liquid or carbon dioxide, except that no report is required for a release of less than 5 barrels (0.8 cubic meters) resulting from a pipeline maintenance activity if the release is:
 - i. Not otherwise reportable under this Section;
 - ii. Not one described in 49 CFR 195.52 (a)(4) (1994 revision and no future revisions), incorporated by reference ~~and on file with the Office of the Secretary of State~~ and copies available from the ~~Commission~~ Office of Pipeline Safety, ~~1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007~~ 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004;
 - iii. Confined to company property or pipeline right-of-way; and
 - iv. Cleaned up promptly.
 - d. Estimated property damage, including cost of clean-up and recovery, value of lost product, and damage to the property of the operator or others, or both, exceeding \$5,000.
 - e. News media inquiry.
4. Written incident reports as required in this Section will be filed with the Office of Pipeline Safety, within the time specified below:
- a. Natural gas, LNG or other gas - within 20 days after detection.
 - b. Hazardous liquids - within 15 days after detection.
5. The Operators shall also file a copy of all DOT required written incident reports with the Information Resources Manager, Office of Pipeline Safety, Research and Special Programs Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation, Washington, DC 20590.
6. Operators of a natural gas or other gas pipeline system will request a clearance from the Office of Pipeline Safety prior to turning on or reinstating service to a master meter operator.
- D. Investigations by the Commission:**
1. The Office of Pipeline Safety will investigate the cause of incidents resulting in death or serious injury.
 2. Pursuant to an investigation under this rule, the Commission, or an authorized agent thereof, may:

Notices of Final Rulemaking

- a. Inspect all plant and facilities of a pipeline system.
 - b. Inspect all other property, books, papers, business methods, and affairs of a pipeline system.
 - c. Make inquiries and interview persons having knowledge of facts surrounding an incident.
 - d. Attend, as an observer, hearings and formal investigations concerning pipeline system operators.
 - e. Schedule and conduct a public hearing into an incident.
3. The Commission may issue subpoenas to compel the production of records and the taking of testimony.
 4. Incidents not reported in accordance with the provisions of this rule will be investigated by the Office of Pipeline Safety.
 5. Incidents referred to in incomplete or inaccurate reports will be investigated by the Office of Pipeline Safety.
 6. Late filed incident reports will be accompanied by a letter of explanation. Incidents referred to in late filed reports may be investigated by the Office of Pipeline Safety.

R14-5-204. Annual Reports

- A. Except for operators of an intrastate pipeline transporting LNG, ~~hazardous liquid~~, all other intrastate pipeline operators will file with the Office of Pipeline Safety, not later than March 15, for the preceding calendar year, the following appropriate report(s):
1. RSPA F 7000-1.1 (February 2004 Edition and no future editions) – “Annual Report for calendar year 20___, hazardous liquid or carbon dioxide systems” and “Instructions for completing RSPA F 7000-1.1 Annual Report for calendar year 20___ hazardous liquid or carbon dioxide systems incorporated by reference, and copies available from the Office of Pipeline Safety, 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004 and the Information Resources Manager, Office of Pipeline Safety, U.S. Department of Transportation, Room 2335, 400 Seventh Street, S.W., Washington, DC 20590.
 - ~~1-2.~~ RSPA F7100.1-1 (November 1985 Edition for use in 2004; March 2005 Edition and no future editions, which can be used in 2004 but will become mandatory starting in 2005) - “Annual Report for Calendar Year 20___, Gas Distribution System” and “Instructions for Completing RSPA Form F7100.1-1, Annual Report for Calendar Year 20___, Gas Distribution System”, incorporated by reference, on file with the Office of the Secretary of State, and copies available from the Commission Office of Pipeline Safety, 1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004 and the Information Resources Manager, Office of Pipeline Safety, Research and Special Programs Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation, Room 8417, 400 Seventh Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20590.
 - ~~2-3.~~ RSPA F7100.2-1 (January 2002 December 2003 Edition and no future editions) - “Annual Report for Calendar Year 20___, Gas Transmission and Gathering Systems” and “Instructions for Completing Form RSPA F7100.2-1, Annual Report for Calendar Year 20___, Gas Transmission and Gathering Systems”, incorporated by reference, on file with the Office of the Secretary of State, and copies available from the Commission Office of Pipeline Safety, 1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004 and the Information Resources Manager, Office of Pipeline Safety, Research and Special Programs Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation, Room 8417, 400 Seventh Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20590.
- B. The operator will also file a copy of all required annual reports by March 15 to the Information Resources Manager, Office of Pipeline Safety, Research and Special Programs Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation, 400 Seventh Street S.W., Washington, D.C. 20590-0001.

R14-5-205. Master Meter System Operators

- A. Applicability. This rule applies to the construction, reconstruction, repair, emergency procedures, operation and maintenance of all master meter systems, as a condition of receiving service from public service corporations. Noncompliance with this rule by operators of a master meter system shall constitute grounds for termination of service by the public service corporation when informed in writing by the Office of Pipeline Safety. In case of an emergency, the Office of Pipeline Safety may give the public service corporation oral instructions to terminate service, with written confirmation to be furnished within 24 hours.
- B. Subject to the definitional changes in R14-5-201 and the revisions noted in subsection (C), the Commission adopts, incorporates, and approves as its own 49 CFR 191 and 192, revised as of ~~January 16, 2002~~ January 15, 2004 (and no future amendments), incorporated by reference, ~~on file with the Office of the Secretary of State, and copies available from the Commission Office of Pipeline Safety, 1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004 and the United States Government Printing Office, P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954 P.O. Box 371975M, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7975.~~
- C. The above mentioned incorporated parts of 49 CFR, except Part 191, are revised as follows:
1. Substitute “Commission” where “Administrator of the Research and Special Programs Administration”, or “Office of Pipeline Safety” (OPS) appear.
 2. Substitute Office of “Pipeline Safety, Arizona Corporation Commission, at its office in Phoenix, Arizona” where the address for the Information Resources Manager, Office of Pipeline Safety, Research and Special Programs Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation appears.

Notices of Final Rulemaking

- D. Operators of a master meter system will establish an Operation and Maintenance Plan (O & M) including an emergency plan. The plans must be maintained at the master meter system location.
- E. Operators of a master meter system will not construct any part of a natural gas or other gas system under a building or permit a building to be placed over a pipeline. Within 180 days of discovery of a building being located over a pipeline, the operator shall remove the building from over the pipeline, relocate the pipeline or discontinue the service to the pipeline located under the building.
- F. Operators of a master meter system will not install Acrylonitrile-Butadiene-Styrene (ABS) or aluminum pipe in their systems.
- G. Operators of a master meter system will not use solvent cement to join together plastic pipe manufactured from different materials unless the operator utilizes a joining procedure in accordance with the specifications of 49 CFR 192, Subpart F, ~~January 16, 2002~~ January 15, 2004 (and no future amendments), incorporated by reference, ~~on file with the Office of the Secretary of State, and copies available from the Commission Office of Pipeline Safety, 1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007~~ 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004 and the United States Government Printing Office, P.O. Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954 ~~P.O. Box 371975M, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7975~~.
- H. Operators of a master meter system that construct a pipeline or any portion thereof using plastic pipe will install, at a minimum, a 14-gauge coated or corrosion resistant, electrically conductive wire as a means of locating the pipe while it is underground. Tracer wire shall not be wrapped around the plastic pipe, tracer wire may be taped, or attached in some manner to the pipe provided that the adhesive or the attachment is not detrimental to the integrity of the pipe wall.
- I. Operators of a master meter system that construct an underground pipeline using plastic pipe, will bury the installed pipe with a minimum of 6 inches of sandy type soil surrounding the pipe for bedding and shading, free of any rock or debris, unless otherwise protected and approved by the Office of Pipeline Safety. Steel pipe shall be installed with bedding and shading, free of any debris or materials injurious to the pipe coating, unless otherwise protected and approved by the Office of Pipeline Safety.
- J. Operators of a master meter system that construct an underground pipeline using plastic pipe will install the pipe with sufficient slack to allow for thermal expansion and contraction. ~~In addition, all plastic pipe shall be marked CD or CE as required by ASTM D2513-95e~~ In addition, all plastic pipe and fittings shall be marked CD, CE, CF, or CG as required by ASTM D2513 (1995c Edition and no future editions), incorporated by reference, on file with the Office of the Secretary of State and copies available from the Commission Office of Pipeline Safety, 1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004 and ASTM International, 100 Barr Harbor Drive, P.O. Box C700, West Conshohocken, Pennsylvania 19428-2959, the ASTM, 1916 Race Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-1187, for areas where the service temperature is above 100°F.
- K. Operators of a master meter gas system shall qualify welding procedures and shall perform welding of steel pipelines in accordance with API Standard 1104. Each welder must be qualified in accordance with API Standard 1104, 49 CFR 192, appendix A.
- L. All repair work performed on existing master meter systems will comply with the provisions of this Article.
- M. Operators of a master meter system will not construct any part of a natural gas or other gas system closer than 8 inches to any other underground structure.
- N. Operators of a master meter system will file a Notice of Construction 30 days prior to commencement of the construction of any pipeline. The Notice will contain the following information:
 - 1. The dates of construction,
 - 2. The size and type of pipe to be used,
 - 3. The location of construction, and
 - 4. The Maximum Allowable Operating Pressure (MAOP).
- O. Operators of a master meter system will perform leakage surveys at intervals not exceeding 15 months but at least once each calendar year and will survey and grade all detected leakage by the following guide -- ASME Guide for Gas Transmission and Distribution Pipeline System, Guide Material, Appendix G-11-1983 (1983 Revision and no future revisions), except 4.4(c), incorporated by reference, ~~on file with the Office of the Secretary of State, and copies available from the Commission Office of Pipeline Safety, 1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007~~ 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004 and the ASME, United Engineering Center, 345 East 47th Street, New York, New York 10017. ("Should" as referenced in the guide will be interpreted to mean "shall".) Leak detection procedures shall be approved by the Office of Pipeline Safety.
- P. Laboratory testing of master meter systems shall be conducted in accordance with the following:
 - 1. If an operator of a master meter system, other gas or hazardous liquid pipeline removes a portion of a failed pipeline, where the cause of the failure is unknown, as the result of an incident that requires a telephonic or written incident report under R14-5-203(B) or (C), the operator shall retain the portion that was removed and shall telephonically notify the Office of Pipeline Safety of the removal within two hours after the removal is completed. A notice made pursuant to this subsection shall include all of the following:
 - a. Identity of the failed pipeline.

Notices of Final Rulemaking

- b. Description and location of the failure.
- c. Date and time of the removal.
- d. Length or quantity of the removed portion.
- e. Storage location of the removed portion.
- f. Any additional information about the failure or the removal of the portion of the pipeline that failed that is requested by the Office of Pipeline Safety.

An unknown failure is any failure where the cause of the failure is not observable external corrosion, third-party damage, natural or other outside forces, construction or material defect, equipment malfunction or incorrect operations; or is any failure where the Office of Pipeline Safety and the operator do not agree as to the cause of the failure.

- 2. Within 48 hours after telephonic notification pursuant to subsection (1), the Office of Pipeline Safety shall notify the operator that either:
 - a. The Office of Pipeline Safety is directing the operator to have the portion of the pipeline that was removed tested by a laboratory to determine the cause or causes of the failure.
 - b. The Office of Pipeline Safety is not directing laboratory testing and the operator may discard the portion of the pipeline that was removed.

The Office of Pipeline Safety shall confirm its notification in writing.

- 3. If the Office of Pipeline Safety directs laboratory testing pursuant to subsection (2)(a):
 - a. The Office of Pipeline Safety shall:
 - i. Determine the laboratory that will do the testing pursuant to subsection (4) and the period of time within which the testing is to be completed.
 - ii. Approve the number and types of tests to be performed.
 - iii. Notify the operator of its determinations pursuant to subsections (3)(a)(i) and (ii).
 - b. The operator shall:
 - i. Notify the Office of Pipeline Safety of the number and types of tests proposed by the operator.
 - ii. Notify the Office of Pipeline Safety of the date and time of any laboratory tests at least 20 days before the tests are done.
 - iii. At the request of the Office of Pipeline Safety, ensure that a representative of the Office of Pipeline Safety is permitted to observe any or all of the tests.
 - iv. Ensure that the original laboratory test results are provided to the Office of Pipeline Safety within 30 days of the completion of the tests.
 - v. Pay for the laboratory testing.
- 4. In determining a laboratory pursuant to subsection (3)(a)(i), the Office of Pipeline Safety shall:
 - a. Submit a written request to at least three different laboratories for bids to conduct the testing.
 - b. Consider the qualifications of the respondent laboratories to perform the testing, including:
 - i. Past experience in performing the required test or tests according to ASTM International standards.
 - ii. Any recognition that the laboratory may demonstrate with national or international laboratory accreditation bodies.
 - c. Select the laboratory that offers the optimum balance between cost and demonstrated ability to perform the required test or tests.
 - d. The Office of Pipeline Safety shall not select a laboratory pursuant to this subsection before either of the following, which ever occurs first:
 - i. The Office of Pipeline Safety has received written bids from at least three different laboratories.
 - ii. Thirty days from the date of the request for bids has passed.

~~P-Q.~~ Operators of a master meter system will file an annual report with the Commission on Commission Form 1-90/15M (1990 Edition and no future editions), "Annual Report for Calendar Year 20___, Small Operators of Gas Distribution System," incorporated by reference, ~~on file with the Office of the Secretary of State, and copies available from the Commission, Office of Pipeline Safety, 1200 West Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007~~ 2200 North Central Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85004. This report will be filed with the Office of Pipeline Safety not later than April 15 for the preceding calendar year.

~~Q-R.~~ The Commission may waive compliance with any of the aforementioned parts upon a finding that such a waiver is in the interest of public safety.

~~R-S.~~ To ensure compliance with provisions of this rule, the Commission or an authorized representative thereof, may enter the premises of an operator of a master meter system to inspect and investigate the property, books, papers, business methods, and affairs that pertain to the operation of the master meter system.

~~S-T.~~ All other Commission administrative rules are superseded to the extent they are in conflict with the pipeline safety provisions of this Article.